C C Dangi & Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of

Allicargo Supply Chain Private Limited

(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of
Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited (“the Company”) (formerly known as
Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited), which comprise the Balance sheet as
at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of Material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
-explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“ the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, its Profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended

on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Page 1 of 15

12th Floor, Ram Nimi, 12 Cawasji Patef Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001, India
Tel: +91 22 2287 6699 | 2287 6688 o Cell: +91 98203 34472 | 96198 36639 e Email: ccd@ccda.co.in @ Website: www.ccda.co.in



Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our
report.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Board of Director’s Report but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusions thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

manageinent.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paras 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable
that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement

and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account. e & 455>
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply

with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 as
amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors

b}

(8)

as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal Financial Controls over financial

reporting.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, no remuneration is paid by the Company to its
directors during the year and hence this Para is not applicable to the

Company.

(h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report

in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

(b} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
[nvestor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

&)\
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(iij The Management has represented, that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come
to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
(b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not proposed any dividend during the year in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company
has used certain accounting softwares for maintaining its books of
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective software. Further, during the course of our
audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.lQQlOSW
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Ashish C. Dangi ums>

Partner

Membership No.: 122926

UDIN:25122926BMNTMV3801

Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th May, 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited (the “Company”) on the financial
statements for the year ended 315t March, 2025, we report that:

(i)
(a) A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and

Equipment and Right of use assets.

B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars
of Intangible Assets.

(b) The property, plant & equipment was physically verified by the
Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification
which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of property, plant
& equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence
reporting under para 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

{d} The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
including right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year.
g

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(i)  a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories.
Thus, para 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) As disclosed in Note 11.1 to the financial statements, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Five Crores in aggregate
from banks and financial institutions during the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company.

Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the
financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the
Company with such banks and financial institutions are in agreement with
the audited books of accounts of the Company.
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(iti)

(iv)

(vii)

There are no material discrepancies in the amount of Trade Receivables as
per books of account and as per quarterly statements submitted to the

bank.

There are no material discrepancies in the amount of Trade Payables as per
books of account and as per quarterly statements submitted to the bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the books of accounts, the Company has not made
investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and
advances, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the provisions of para
3(iii)(a), 3(iti)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e} and 3(iii){f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the books of accounts, the Company has not given
loans, guarantees, and security, or invested in other companies covered
under section 185 and 186 of the Act during the period under audit & hence
reporting under para 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor
accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning
of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder,
to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on para 3(v)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the services of the

Company.
In respect of its statutory dues:

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it
with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
audit procedures performed by us, there were no undisputed in respect
of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable

except below: J ,ﬁf_’g[}:ﬁg\
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Name Nature Amount | Period Remarks
Of the Statute of Dues (Rs.) to
which
the

amount

relates
The Tamilnadu Tax on | Profession | 16,385/- | F.Y. Registration
Professions, Trade, | Tax 2022-23 | obtained,
Callings & Employment payment
Act, 1992 pending.
The Karnataka Tax on | Profession |7,800/- |F.Y. Registration
Professions, Traders, | Tax 2022-23 | obtained,
Callings & Employment payment
Act, 1976 pending.
The Gujarat Panchayats | Profession | 5,600/- |F.Y. Registration
Municipalities, Tax 2022-23 | obtained,
Municipal Corporations payment
and State Tax on pending.
Professions, Trades,
Callings & Employment
Act, 1976
The West Bengal State | Profession | 3,760/- |F.Y. Registration
Tax on  Professions, | Tax 2022-23 | obtained,
Trades, Callings & payment
Employment Act, 1976 pending.
The Karnataka Tax on | Profession |4,800/- |F.Y. Registration
Professions, Traders, | Tax 2023-24 | obtained,
Callings & Employment payment
Act, 1976 pending.
The Karnataka Tax on | Profession |400/- F.Y. Pending  for
Professions, Traders, | Tax 2024-25 | April 2024.
Callings & Employment
Act, 1976
Andhra Pradesh Tax on | Profession |3,300/- |F.Y. Registration is
Professions, Trades, | Tax 2024-25 |in Process
Callings & Employment
Act, 1987
The Tamilnadu Tax on | Profession |2,500/- |F.Y. Registration
Professions, Trade, | Tax (PTEC) 2024-25 | obtained,
Callings & Employment payment
Act, 1992 pending.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
disputed dues of Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax etc. which have not
been deposited with the appropriate authority on account of any
dispute.
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(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that

(ix)

(=)

(i)

have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the books of accounts, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) As per information and explanations given by the management, term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) The funds raised by the Company on a short-term basis have not been
utilized for long term purposes.

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or

joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
and hence para 3(ix)(f} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.
Accordingly, para 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fuily or partly or
optionally} and hence para 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit nor have we
been informed of such case by the management.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the
year and upto date of this report.

(c) As informed by the management, no whistle-blower complaints received

during the year by the Company. :
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(x1i)

(i)

(xvi)

(xvii)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as defined under section 406 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, para 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the
size and nature of its business.

{b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit,
issued to the Company during the year.

On the basis of information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, para 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934) are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, requirement to
report on para (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

(b) There is no core investment company as a part of the Group (as defined
in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly para 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any Cash Losses in the financial year
covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company

(xix)

during the year and reporting under para 3(xviii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities and our knowledge of
the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We however, state that this is not an assurance-as.to the future viability of
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the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up
to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they

fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts
that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of
the Companies Act (the Act), in accordance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in
Note no. 32 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are
required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision
of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. N.?‘ IO‘QIOSW
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Ashish C. Dangi T
Partner

Membership No.: 122926

UDIN: 25122926BMNTMV3801

Place: Mumbai

Date: 16t May, 2025
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st
March, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended and as at on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.
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4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements

5. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

6. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.
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Opinion

7. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financjal controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg. No.102105W
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Ashish C. Dangi \\@Q@ﬁz//

Partner

Membership No.: 122926
UDIN: 25122926BMNTMV3801
Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th May, 2025
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Regd Office: 6th Floor, Allcargo House, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (E), Mumbai, 400098

Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

{Z in Lakhs)

Notes 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Assets
Non-current Asscts
Property, plant and equipment (net) 3.1 6,588.33 6,140.01
Right-of-use assets a2 32,057.82 30.763.76
Other [ntangible assets 33 1393 18.59
Intangible fixed assets under development 34 17.50 -
Financial assets
Other financial assets 42 3.276.54 2.242.4{
Deferred tax assets (net) 5.1 1,474.47 989.78
Income lax assets (net) 5.2 2,438.85 2,373.05
Other non-current assels 805.53 532.80
Total - Non=-current Asscts 46,672.98 43,060.40
Current assets
Contract Asseis 7 4,517.56 2,098.87
Firancial assets
Short ferm loans 8.1 37.66 126.48
Trade receivables 8.2 7,873.35 4,718.91
Cash and cash equivalents B3 466.69 4.32
Other financial assets 84 123.07 103.03
(rher current assets & 1,174.91 1,543.91
Total - Current Assets 14,193.24 8,590.52
Total Assets 60,866.22 51,650.92
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 22915.71 22915.71
Other cquity 10 {14,859.97) (15,308.035)
8,055.74 7.607.66
Non-current Liabilities
Finaacial liabilitics
Lense hability 31 23,801.27 25,475.20
Borrowings 1.1 5,52547 3.071.02
Other financial liabilities 114 607.41 660.69
Net employment defined benefit Habilitics 1 464.43 321.84
Other non-cusrent liabilities 2 23938 212.74
Teotal - Non-current liabilities 30,637.98 2974149
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease lisbility 31 9,151.35 1,907.37
Borrowings 1.1 4,595.13 959.33
Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 1.2 158.20 92,53
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises f1.2 3,585.23 2.327.94
Other payables 11.3 3.627.13 2.309.03
Other finaneiai liabilities 114 1.71 -
Net employment defined banafit liabilities 13 24.25 16.16
Other current liahilities 12 829.52 689.41
Total - Corrent Liabilities 22,172.52 14,300.77
Total Equity and Liabilities 60,866.22 51,650.92
Material Accounting Policies -2
3-39

Notes to the financial statements

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repert of even date attached

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAL firm registration No. 10210

For ang on behalf of Board of Directors of

Allearg
CIN:U:

o Supply Chain Private Limited
45200MH2O08PTC1 79557

I, =
arni Ravi Jakhar

Ashish C. Dangi
Partner
Membership No. 122926
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Managing Dirtctor Director
DIN No: 02188690

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 16th May,2025




Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limiied
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Regd Office: 6th Floor, Allcargo House, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (E), Mumbai, 400098
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2015

(Z in Lakhs)
Notes 3ist March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 14 45,758.93 34,888.96
Other income 15 504.82 362.14
Finance incore 16 422.13 438.65
Total income 46,685.93 31,689.75
Expenses
Cost of services rendered 17 23,791.31 11,377.95
Employee benefits expense 18 5,180.36 3,944.81
Finance costs 19 3,258.48 3.300.86
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 20 10,874.45 9,918.02
Other expenses 21 2,959,29 2,003.47
Total expenses 46,063.83 30,635.11
Profit before tax 622.10 1,054.64
Tax expense:
Current tax 5.2 654.50 533.00
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 5.2 - 19.47
Deferred tax (credit)/charge Ll (484.69) (217.18)
Total tax expense 169.81 335.29
Profit for the year (A) 452.29 719.35
Other Comprehensive Income:
Iterns that will net be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans (4.21) (19.64)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (B) (4.21) (19.64)
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A) + (B) 448.08 699.71
Earnings per equity share {nrominal value of Rs.10 each)
Basic (Amount in full Indian Rupee) 23 0.20 0.31
Diluted (Amount in full Indian Rupee) 23 0.20 0.31
Material Accounting Policies 1-2
Notes to the financial statements 3-39
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For C C Dangi & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Alleargo/Supply Chain Private Limited
ICAI firm registration No.102105W CIN:Li45200NMH2Z008PTC179557

o\ S

Ravi Jakhar
Director
DIN No: 02188690
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Ashish C. Dangi
Partmer
Membership No.122926

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May,2025 Date: 16th May,2025



Allcargo Supply Chain Privare Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Regd Office: 6th Floor, Allcargo House CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz (E), Mumbai, 400098
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2025

{All amount in Indian Rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Operating activities
Profit / (Loss) before tax 622.10 1,054.64
Adjustments to reconcile profit/{loss) before tax te net cash flows:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10,874.45 9,918.02
Sundry balances written/back (355.03) (48.94)
Bad Debts / Sundry Bajances written off 155.68 96.23
Allowances for Impairment of Trade receivable 186.82 {31.06)
Provision Fer Doubtful Deposits - 38.24
Finance income (374.81} (273.41)
Finance costs 3,258.48 3,300.86
Fair Value Gair on derecognition of ROU (99.73) .
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 87.49 105.22
(Gain} on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment (16.87) {20.90)
Remeasurement gains on acturial gain - -
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss {net) (0.07) 0.95
Working capitel adjastarenis:
Decrease / {increase) in trade receivables (3,496.88) (170.42)
Decrease / (increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets (579.37) (84.29)
(Increase) in Other Current financial assets and Short Term Loans and Advances 62,78 (149.42)
Decrease / (increasce) in other Current / Non current and Contract Assets {1,946.82) (577.12)
(Decrease)/ Tncrease in provisions 1,318.12 (4,425.70)
{Decrease)/ Increase in Trade payables, other Current /Non current and (4,116.77) (454.47)
Current/Non-Current Financial Liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities 5,579.57 8,278.44
Income tax {paid)/received (including TDS) (net of refund) (720.30) (233.61)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) 4,859.27 8.039.82
Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,300.38 233.11
Purchase of property, plant and eguipment (including CWIP) (4,376.92) (2,568.58}
Payment of Security Deposit on Lease {269.79) -
Purchasc of FD (200.00) -
Interest Income Received = 11.30
Net cash flows from / (used in} investing activities (B) (2,546.33) (2,324.17)
Financing activities
Praceeds Non Cureent Borrowings 2,803.74 898.36
(Repayment) Non Current Borrowings B {2{:1.28)
Proceeds Current Borrowings 5,630.96 2,209.33
(Repayment) Curremi Borrowings (2,035.83) (1,250.00)
Lease Payment (including Interest) (7,948.62) (7,966.45)
Finance costs (296.82) (153.39)
Net eash flows from / (used in) financing activities (C}) (1,846.57} {6,463.43)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 46637 (747.78)
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 0.32 743.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end (Refer Note no. 8.3) 466.69 .32

As per our report of even date attached
For C C Dangi & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICALI firm registration No.102105W -
5 ;
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Ashish C. Dangi =\ Ketan Ravi Jakhar
Partner J Managing Director

Membership No.122926

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May, 2025

behalf of the Directors of
pply Chain Private Limited
MHZ00SPTC179557

v

DIN No: 02188690

Place : Mumbai
Date: 16th May,2025




Equity Share Capital:

Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March,2025

Issued equity share capital

Equity shares of ¥ 10/- eacli issued, subscribed and fully paid Na. ¥ in Lakhs

At 1st April, 2023 2291,57,113 2291571

Issue of share capital - -

At 1st April, 2024 22,91,57,113 2291571

Issue of share capital / Equity Component - -

At 3Tst March, 2025 22,91,57,113 2291571

CGther Equity:

For the year ended 31st March, 2025 (¥ in Lakhs)
Other Balance in

Particulars Capital Reserve Comprehensive | Statement of Prefit Total Equity
Income and Loss

As at 1st April, 2024 (16,640.56) (20.94) [,353.45 (15,308.05)

Net Profit for the year - - 452.29 452,29

Changes during the year - (4.21) - (4.21)

As At 31st March, 2025 (16,640.56) (25.15) 1,805.74 (14,859.9

For the year ended 31st March, 2024 (T in Lakhs)
Other Balance in

Particulars Capital Reserve Comprehensive | Statement of Profit Total Equity
Income and Loss

As at 1st April, 2023 {16,646.56) (1.30) 634.10 (16,047.76)

Net Profit for the year - - 718.35 719.35

Changes during the year 3 (19.61) - (19.64)

As At 31st March, 2024 (16,640.56) (20.94) 1,353.45 (13,308.05)

For C C Dangi & Asso¢iates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI firm registration No.102105W
o

Z

Ashish C. Dangi
Partner

Membership No.122926

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May,2025

behalf of Board of Directors of

Allcargo pupply Chain Private Limited
CIN:UHS200MH2008PTC 179557

Place: Mumbai
Date: 16th May,2025

ﬂm ap—
Ravi Jakhar

Director
DIN No: 02188690




Alleargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 315 March, 2025

1. Corporate Information

Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited (Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited), (the
‘Company’) was incorporated on 28th February, 2008 and is a engaged in business of providing the services
of Contract Logistics Operations, which involves hiring warchousing for providing 3PL service to customer

as primary activities.

The Company is a private limited company, domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and has its registered office at 6th floor, Allcargo House, CST Road, Kalina, Santacruz
(East), Mumbai — 400098, Maharashtra, India.

The Standalone financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on 16th May, 2025.

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
notified under the Companies Rules 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for
derivative financial instruments and certain other financial assets and liabilities which have been measured
at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments). The financial statements have been

prepared on a going concern basis.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (% 00,000) upto
2 decimal points, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» [Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

¢ Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

¢ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

e

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

f X
[[S)

©

A&

( CHARTERED \
ACCOUNTANTS



Alleargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2025

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

a. Foreign currencies:

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at their respective functional currency (i.e. Indian
Rupee) spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons,
the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Exchange differences arising on translation / settlement of foreign currency are recognized as income or
expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair value measurement

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the company uses assumptions that are based on
market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The method used to determine the fair value
includes Discounted Cash Flow analysis, available quoted market price and dealer quotes. All methods of
assessing fair value resuit in general approximation of fair value and such value may never be actually
realized. For all other financial instruments, the carrying amount approximates Fair Value due to the short
maturity of those instruments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met

before revenue is recognized.

Contract Logistics

Contract Logistics service charges and management fees are recognised as and when the services are
performed as per the contractual terms.

Others:
All the retmbursement expenses incurred on behalf of the customers is netted off with the relevant
reimbursement income received from the customer.

terest income is recognised on time proportion basis. Interest income is included in finance income !11 the
atoment of Profit and Loss.

Aess support charges are recognized as and when the related services are rendered.
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2025

Contract balances
Contract balances include trade receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Trade receivables are separately
disclosed in the financial statements.

Contract assets

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If
the Company performs by transferring services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment
is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).

Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Taxes

Current Income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act,1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside
the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2025

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OC! or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legaily enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets

are expected to be settled or recovered.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the balance sheet.

f. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing cost relating to acquisition of
tangible assets which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the
extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. Capital work in progress is stated at

cost.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit

and loss as incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Category Useful lives (in years)
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8§10 10
Computers Jtob
Office equipments 5
Plant and machinery 15
Leasehold improvements shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the
lease term not exceeding 15 years

The Company, based on internal assessment and management estimate, depreciates certain items of Office
Equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to
the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
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Alcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31* March, 2025

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Internally generated intangibies, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is

incurred.

Amortization

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Computer software is amortized
on a straight-line basis over a period of 6 years basis the life estimated by the management. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognized upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or company of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31* March, 2025

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs includes interest and amortisation of ancillary cost over the petiod of loans which are
incurred in connection with aitangements of borrowings

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Company does not
have any Right-of-use assets which are depreciated on a straight-line basis for the period shorter of the lease

term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-
of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (h) Impairment of

non-financial assets.

ii. Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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Alleargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31* March, 2025

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the

assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

1il. Sale and leaseback transactions

In case of sale-and-leaseback transactions, the Company (seller-lessee) sells an asset to another entity (buyer-
lessor) who then leases it back to the Company. In order to determine the appropriate accounting treatment
under Ind AS 116, the sale is first assessed as to whether it qualifies as a sale in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

a) If the transfer of an asset by the Company satisfies the requirements of Ind AS 115 to be accounted for as
a sale of the asset. the Company measures he right-of-use asset arising from the leaseback transaction at the
propottion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right of use retained by the
Company. Accordingly, the Company recognises only the amount of any gain or loss that relates to the rights

transferred to the buyer-lessor.

b) If the transfer of an asset by the Company does not satisfy the requirements of Ind AS 115 to be accounted
for as a sale of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset and recognises a financial
liability equal to the transfer proceeds. It accounts for the financial liability applying Ind AS 109.

Depreciation on Leased Property Plant & Equipment

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Category Useful lives (in years)

Furniture and fixtures 7

Computers 3t07

Office equipments 5

Plant and machinery 7

Leasehold improvements shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the
lease term not exceeding 7 years

The Company, based on internal assessment and management estimate, depreciates certain items of Office
Equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect
fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised
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Alleargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2025

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the date of transition. It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

[f the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there
is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,

Retirement and other employee benefits

¢ Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of availing employee services are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The
undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits such as salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia to be
paid in exchange of employee services are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related

service.
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Alicarge Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2025

* Post-employment benefits

Defined coniribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified monthly contributions towards Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance Corporation
(“ESIC’). The contribution of these is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during
the period in which employee renders the related service. There are no other obligations other than the
contribution payable to the Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme.

Defined benefit plan:

Gratuity liability wherever applicable is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation done as per
projected unit credit method, carried out by an independent actuary at the end of the year. The
Companys’gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan.

The Company makes contributions to a trust administered and managed by an Insurance Company to fund
the gratuity liability. Under this scheme, the obligation to pay gratuity remains with such Company, although
the Insurance Company administers the scheme.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based
on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. The Company presents the
leave as a short-term provision in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to
defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the unconditional legal and
contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as long-term
provision.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Financial instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, plus in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. >




Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31%' March, 2025

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost
- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

a. Debt instruments at amortised cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included in finance income in the statement profit and loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

b. Debt instrument at FYTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

- The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

- The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However,
the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss
in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst
holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

¢. Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not
designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
in the statement of profit and loss. A BAS
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2025

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets which are not fair valued through statement of
profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there

has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at
lifetime ECL. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment

loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the “statement

of profit and loss™.

As a practical expedient, The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are

analysed.

ECL is recognised based on assessment of credit risk and since credit risk is low in case of related party.
Hence ECL is not recognised.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through statement
of profit and loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an

effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of

profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. o
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31% March, 2025

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

0. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the

Company’s cash management.

p. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated in the Cash flow statement.

q. Earning per equity share

Basic {(Earnings per share) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of caiculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit of the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of
the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

2.3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time {o time.

For the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments
to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.e.f. April

I,2024.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does
not have any significant impact in its financial statements. J—




Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31° March, 2025

2.4 Significant accounting judgements estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods. Some of the significant accounting judgement and estimates are given

below:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to
renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it
to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the
lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available.
The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the credit rating).

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined
using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary

increases and mortality rates. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. The mortality rate is based
on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only

at interval in response to demographic changes.
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Allcarge Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 315 March, 2025

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 31

for further disclosures.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge
in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company assets
are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets.
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

3.3. Intangible Assets (¥ in Lakhs)
Description Computer Software Total
Gross Block
Balance as at Ist April, 2023 62.18 62.18
Additions 6.09 6.09
Disposals (20.30) (20.30)
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 47.96 47.96
Additions " =
Disposals = -
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 47.96 47.96
Amortisation
Balance as at [st April, 2023 44.75 44.75
Ameortisation {15.38) (15.38)
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 29.37 29.37
Amortisation 4.66 4.66
Balance as at 31st .\Tarch. 2025 34.03 34.03
Net book value
At 31st March, 2024 18.59 18.59
At 31st March, 2025 13.93 13.93
3.4. Intangible Assets under Development
Particulars 31st March,2025 31st March,2024
Intangible Assets Under Development 17.50 -

Iniangible Assets under Development for the year ended as on March 31,2025 is as follows:

(T in Lakhs)

Amount in CWIP for period of

Particulars

Less than 1 Year

1-2 Years

2-3 Years

Years

Parti
articulars Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Moretuns ot
Years
Projects in Progress 17.50 - - - 17.50
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total Intangible Assets Under Development 17.50 - - - 17.50
Intangible Assets under Development for the vear ended as on March 31,2024 s as follows:
Amount in CWIP for period of
More than 3 Taotal

Projects in Progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Total Intangible Assets Under Development
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the finaicial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(T in Lakhs)

5.1 Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following:

Depreciation & Amortization of Property Plant & Equipment, Right
ta use Assets and Intangible Assets
Provision for Doubtful Debt
Provision for Deposit

Accrued Income

Pravision for employee Benefit

Ind As Adjustment:

Expected Credit Losses

Non Current Borrowings - OCRPS
Prepaid Expense

Security Deposit & Lease Liabilities
Deferred tax expense/(income)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred tax assets (net)

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Asset (nef):

Opening balance as of 1st April
Less: Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in profit and loss
Clesing bhalance as at 31st March

5.2 Income tax Assets (net)

Particulars

Advance tax recoverable (net of provision for taxes)
Others

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31st March,2025 and
31st March,2024 are:

Statement of profit and loss:

Profit or loss section

Current income tax:

Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Tncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

rate for 31st March, 2025 & 31st March, 2024:

Profit before tax
Profit before income tax

Computed fax expenses

Expenses not allowed for tax purpose
Tax Effect of earlier years

Other

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Balance Sheet

Profit and Loss

31st March, 25

31st March, 24

31st March, 25

31st March, 24

(7.963.34) (7,814.96) 148.38 1,766.78
102.20 4858 (53.62) (40.20)
7.05 9.62 258 (9.62)
(101.92) - 101.92 .
122.99 85.07 (37.92) (48.08)
(37.70) (29.93) 777 23.60
727.84 40,45 (687.39) (40.45)
25.09 = (25.09) z
8,592.26 8,650.95 58.68 (1,869.20)
- . (484.69) (217.18)
147447 989.78 - :
1,474.47 989.78 (484.69) (217.18)

At the effective income tax rate of 27.48% (31st March, 2024: 32.40%)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax

At India's statutery income tax rate of 25.168% (31st March, 2024: 25,168%)

31st March, 25

31st March, 24

9,577.43 8.834.67

(8,102.96) (7,844 .89)
1,474.47 989.78
31st March, 25 31st March, 24
989.78 772.60

(484.69) (217.18)

1,474.47 989.78
31st March, 25 31st March, 24
243885 2,373.05
2,438.85 2,373.05
31st March, 25 31st March, 24
654.50 533.00

- 19.47

{484.69) (217.18)

169.81 335.29

617.89 1,035.00

617.89 1,035.00

155.51 260.49

10.88 7.68

- i9.47

342 47.65

169.81 335.29

169.81 335.29

169,81 335.29

B AS,

The Company offsets lax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and currcnt tax ]IabllltlBS and tﬁe defen'cd
tax assets and deferred fax Habilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax Authority. ,

-‘f,..
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ¢nded 31st March, 2025

(¥ in Lakhs)

Revenue from Operations

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Contract logistics income 45,758.93 30,888.96
Total Revenue - 45,738.93 30,888.96
Geographical markets (T in Lakhs)

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Sale of Services - India 45,743.64 30,814.41
Sale of Services - Qutside India 15.2% 74.55
Total Revenne from Contracts with Customers 45,758.93 30,888.96
Timing of Revenue Recognition

(T in Lakhks)

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Services Transferred point in time 45,758.93 30,888.96
Total Revenve frem Coniracts with Cnstomers 45,758.93 30,5888.96
Contract Balances

(¥ in Lakhs)

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Trade Receivables 7.873.35 4.718.91
Caontract Asset 4517.56 2,098.87
Other Tncome (¥ in Lakhs)

Other non-operating income

Net gain on account of foreign exchange fluctuations
Profit on sale of assets

Miscellenous Income

Liability ne longer required written back

Other Support Services

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

0.07 -
16.87 20.90
13.33 10.65

355.03 48.94
119.52 28165
504.82 362.14

Finance Income

(% in Lakhs)

Interest income on

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

- Fixed deposits with banks 2237 11.30
- Income Tax Refund 47.38 165.24
- Financial Assets 352.44 262.11
422.18 438.65
Cost of Services Rendered (¥ in Lakhs)
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Contract logistics expenses 23.791.31 11,377.95
23,791.31 11,377.95

Q { CHARTERED )
o \ACCOUNTANTS




Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes io the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31si March, 2025

18 Employee Benefits Expense (T in Lakhs)
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Salaries, wages and bonus 4,164 68 3,252.58
Contributions to provident and other funds 221.24 198.99
Staff welfare expenses 606.73 338.71
Compensated absences 114.41 8392
Gratiity expenses 73.24 50.61
5,180.30 3,944.81
The code of Social Security, 2020 (the code) relating to employee benefit during employement & post employement benefits received
Presidential assent in Septernber 2020. The code has been published in the Gazzette of India. However, the date on which the code will
come into effect has not been notified & the final rules / interpretation have not yet been issued . The company wiil assess the impact of the
code when it comes into effect & will record any related impact in the period the code becomes effective. Based on preliminary
assessement, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.
19  Finance Costs (¥ in Lakhs)
Jist March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Interest on Cash Credit 33.90 5357
Interest on Bank Term Loan 168.97 76.15
Interest on borrowings from Related Parties 93.0% 23.67
Interest on borrowings from Financing Institutions 47.16 -
Interest on Lease Liabilities 2.766.13 2,999.11
Financial Liabilities matured at amortized cost 14836 148.36
325848 3,300.86
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supplv Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

20 Depreciation and Amortisation

2]

(T in Lakhs)

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

Depzeciation of property, plant and equipment 1,471.65 1,007.37
Depreciation on leased property, plant and equipment 08,82 -
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 9,299.32 8,906.20
Amortisation of intangible assets 4 66 445
10,874.45 9,918.02
Other Expenses (X in Lakhs)
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Legal And Professional Fees 518.68 183.16
Travelling Expenses 231.00 147.63
Repairs - Computers 6.03 53.59
Repairs - General 201.36 162,67
Rates And Taxes 108.39 86.98
Printing And Stationery 143.28 127.65
Business Promotion 18.37 36.20
Communication Charges 132.99 104.89
Membership And Subscription 21.30 20.32
Conference Expenses 0.17 5.10
Electricity Charges P 0.77
Impatrment Loss Recognised / (Reversed) Under Expected Credit Loss Model 186,82 (31.06)
Payment To Auditors (Refer Note Below) 17.75 19.90
Loss on account of foreign exchange fluctuations (net) = 0.95
CSR Expense (Refer Note 32) 43.00 28.00
Bank Charges 0.61 320
Bad Debts/Advances Written Off 155.68 96.23
Contract Staff Expenses 16.83 16.50
Provision For Doubtful Deposits - 38.24
Loss on Sale/ Discard of Assets 8749 105.22
Business Support Charges 1,069.21 853,48
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.33 343
2,959.29 2,093.47
Payments to the Auditor;
As auditor
Statutory Audit 8.00 2.50
Special Purpose Audit 2.00 7.00
Tax audit 3.00 715
Limited Review 4.50 3.00
Transfer Pricing audit 0.25 0.25
17.75 19.90
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited

(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

23. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average

number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounis are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on cenversion of alf the

dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders (Rs in Lakhs)

Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS (In number)
Nominal Value of Shares, Fully Paid up (In Full rupees)

Basic and diluted EPS (In Full Rupees)

452,29 719.35
22,91,57,113 22,91,57.113
10 10

0.20 0.31
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Net Emploviment Defined Benefit Liabilities

(T in Lakhs)

(a) Defined Contribrutions Flans

the Statement of Profit and [Loss,

(b) Pefined Benefit Plans

Lstatements: -

Change in the defined benefit obligation
Liability at the beginning of the year

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid directly by employer

Acquistion / Divestiture

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Financial Assumptions
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Experience

Liability at the end of the year

Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Liability at the end of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Net Assets/(liabilities) recognised in the balance shect

Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost

Interest cost
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Remeasurement Effects Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
a. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Demographic Assumption changes in DBO

b. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Financial Assumption changes in DBG

¢. Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Experience on DBO

d. Return on Plan Assets (Greater) / Less than Discount rate

Total Actnarial (Gain)/Loss included in OCI

Total Cost Recognised in Comprehensive Income
Cost Recognised in P&L

Remeasurements Effects Recognised in OCT

Total Cost Recognised in Compreheasive Income

Balance sheet reconciliation

Opening net {Asset) / Liability

Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
hExpenses Recognized in OC1

Net Liability /(Asset) Transfer In

Empleyers contribution paid

Direct benefit payment by Employer

J(Asset)} /Liability recognised in the balance sheet

For the Company an amount of ¥ 221.24 lacs {31st March, 2024: ¥ 198.99 lacs ) contributed to provident funds, ESIC and other funds (refer
note 18) is recognised by as an expense and included in ““Contribution to Provident & Other Funds” under “Employee benefits expense” in

As per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee wito has completed five years or
more of service gets a gratuity on resignation or retirement at 15 days salary (last drawn salary} for each completed year of service

The following table sets out the funded as well as unfunded status of the retirement benefit plans and the amounts recognised in Financial

31st Mareh, 2025 31st March, 2024
173.44 120.69
12.68 8.99
63.99 44.93
(15.31) (16.33)
491 0.74
13.74 6.35
(9.64) 13.07
248.81 178.44
248.81 178.44
50.68 4736
(198.13) (131.08)
63.99 44.93
9.26 5.67
73.24 50.61
13.74 6.35
(9.64) 13.07
0.11 0.22
421 19.64
73.24 50.61
4.21 19.64
77.45 70.25
131,08 76.42
73.24 50.61
421 19.64
491 0.74
(15.31) (16.33)
198.13 131.08
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VI|Change in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

X

Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Net Emplovment Defined Benefit Liabilities

{Tin Lakhs)

|Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of salary increase

of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of reporting period.

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 47.36 44.26
Expected Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 3.42 3.32
Actuarial gain /(loss) on Plan Assets (0.11) (0.22)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 50.68 47.36
Actual return on Plan Assets:
Expected Return on Plan Assets 342 3.32
Actuearial gain /(loss) on Plan Assets (0.11) {(.22)
Actual Return on Plan Assets 3.32 3.10
Investment details of Plan Assets:
Insurer Managed Funds & others 50.68 47.36
Total Plan Assets 50.68 47.36
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars ) 31s¢ March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Year 1 3.04 6.14
Year 2 3.64 2.73
Year 3 14.59 3.33
Year 4 8.63 11.81
Year 5 10.07 6.72
Year6to 10 87.54 61.68
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the plans of the Company are as follows:
Acturial assumptions 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Discount rate 6.81% 7.23%
5% for First year 5% for First year,
Salary escalation thereafter 8% thereafter 8%
Employee turnover rate:
Service <= 4 years 15.00% 15.00%
Service > 4 years 2.00% 2.00%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for the significant assumptions as at March 31, 2025 is as shown below:
Defined benefit obligation 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of discounting 217.76 156,43
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of discounting 286.26 205.1
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of salary increase 284.99 203.81
217.60 156.33

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result




Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerty known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

(T in Lakhs)

25 (I) |Contingent Liabilities
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

a) Bank Guarantee 7.50 2.50
b) Vendor claims against the company not acknowiedged as debt - 218.83
7.50 221.33

c) Pursuant to the scheme of demerger, ASCPL has a contractual liability with CCI Worldwide Logistics Private Limited (Formetly known as Avvashya CCI
Logistics Private Limited) for any liability arising out of matters related o Taxes (Direct & Indirect) fer the period from July 2016 to June 2021 and it shall be
attributed between Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited & CCI Worldwide Logistics Private Limited (Formerly known as Avvashya CCI Logistics Private
Limited)in the ratio of pre demerger shareholding (61.132% : 38.87%).

Further, the liability, if any, of assessment / re-assessment of Taxes (Direct & Indirect) will have to be reimbursed to CCI Worldwide Logistics Private
Limited (Formerly known as Avvashya CCI Logistics Private Limited) as per the order passed by respective authorities to give effect of demerger.

25(1f) Capital Commitment

(¥ in Lakhs)

Cominitment for acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipments (Net of Advances) 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Towards Property,Plant & Equipment 726.92 570,22
726.92 570.22

Total = m

25 (I1T)|a, Dues to Micro and Small Suppliers

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 02 October 2006, certain disclosures are
required to be made relating to MSME. On the basis of the information and records available with the Company, the following disclosures are made for the
amounts due to the Micro and Small Enterprises. The information given is based en the information available with the Company and has been relied upon by

the auditors.

3J1st March, 2025 J1st March, 2024

Particulars
Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the period 358.20 92.53
NIL Nil

[nterest due thereon
Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the NIL Nil
MSMED, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of defay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during NIL Nil
the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED.

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the NII Nil

accounting period
The ameunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, uatil such date when the interest dues as above are

actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowances as NIL Nil
a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006
b. Details On Derivatives Insiruments And Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposures:-
The compary has no derivative instruments.
The year-end foreign currency exposares that have ntot been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given below:
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
USD (1o full} (T in Lakhs) USD (Tn full} (T in Lakhs)
Trade Receivahles 2,299 2.00 12,978 10,81
2,299 2.00 12,978 11.81
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Alleargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

26A. Related Party Transactions
Name of related parties
I. Holding Company
Allcargo Logistics Limited (Holding Company)
I1. Fellew subsidiaries

Alicargo Corporate Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Ecu International (Asia) Pvt. Ltd.)

Allcargo Gati Limited (Formerly known as GATI Limited)

Gati Express & Supply Chain Private Limited

Gati Cargo Express Shanghai Co Litd

Ecu Worldwide (Kenya) Ltd. (formerly known as Ecu-Line Kenya Lid.)

1IN Directors/Key managerial personnel

Mr. Pirojshaw Aspi Sarkari, Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f 30th November,2024)
Mr. Ketan Nishikant Kulkarni, Managing Director (appointed w.e.f 06th February,2025)
Mr, Ravi Ramswaroop Jakhar, Director

Mr. Nayan Ramesh Sanghavi , Chief Finance Officer (appointed w.e.f 30th May,2023)
Mr. Malav Mayank Talati, Company Secretary {Resigned w.e.f 31st July, 2024)
Mrs.Vinita Dang Mohoni, Additional Director (appointed w.e.f 30th May,2023)

Mr. Adarsh Hegde, Direcior (resigned w.e.f. 30.05.2023)

Mr. Vaishnav Shashikiran Shetty, Director (resigned w.e.f 03.07.2023)

Mr, Sadik Jafar Thange, Company Secretary (resigned w.e.f 17.10.2023)

IV. Entities over which key managerial personnel or their relative's exercises significant influence:

Allcargo Gati Limited (Formerly known as GATI Limited)
Gali Express & Supply Chain Private Limited

V Persan having conirol over the reporting entity and on whose advice, directions or insiructions a director or manager is

accustorned to act;
Shashi Kiran Shetty

VL. Entity is controlled or jointly controlled by person has significant influence over the entity or is 2 member of the key
disclosed to the extent of transactions management personnel of the entity

Allcargo Terminals Limiled

Avashya Foundation

Talentos (India) Private Limited

Avash Builders and Infrastructure Private Limited

Transindia Real Estate Limited (Formerly known as Transindia Realty & Logistics Parks Limited) (TREL) —

Koproli Warchousing Private Limited .

AGL Warehousing Private Limited )"f\, & A EE}:&,‘

Madanahatti Logistics and Industrial Parks Private Limiied /e _3\?’“' R ,‘,.':\L
.3 > ’"'I'ARTLRED\/ \

.8

5
\\f_{{vf‘:f/




- - 0SSl 39°%1 - - i -

PIT iad QIRGD) AJddNSy 39 ss21dx 4

e g PETIAd]
- - 18T 6L61 - = E = urey) Ajddng 7 ssardxg nen -paaraoay sadmys veddng ssaursng
3 " 9Ll 8S'E = - - B pr13ad ureyy Addng 7p ssaadxy gen - swoour Supriadg mqio
= = 06'L6 £T°99 = B - = MT1Ad Uy A[ddng 3 ss31dxg NED - SWoou] [eiboy]
B - - - 16'160'1 - : - (#) PalIIT ABALI] BPOWI[TUA] 05Ieo| [y-sasuadxy [eusy
& - - - CEE0L £TPE B = PAJLILIT 2IBALL{ BIDUT SOJUS[E | -sasusdxy |Rjusy
- - E = 99°€01 = = = (#) paywi ajeang [epoinny odmeo|y-sasusdxy Suneiadg
- - B = L61TE SCphe E E PaIIULI| JBALL] mc_mzoxua A Headoy-susodag] Amoag

) - : 00°000¢ - - = = snuepeg fusor)

: - 000001 007000 = = - S preday ueo 5597

= - 00°000°L 00°000% - - s = USYEL RO PPV

- N u - % - u 3 aoue|eg Sutnadoy
P¥T R 08rea|ry-sSuimoLiog
* - - TLES - - - - PIT gy of e y-sBulmoalog uo s[qeArg Isassiu]
N - - 1961 T = s - PI] 1B 08reof]y-sajqeke  opez],
) - 058 000 - - - - PI7 00 teySueyg ssaxdxg ofien) neg-ajqeArsosy aper],
B - 0£'T 00T - - = = PIT (BAUSY) 9PLMPHIOA N195-0]qRAIDISY apRL]
. - OUrI §9'9 = - - - PYT (BAUSY) 3PIMpiic ), nog-atoan] Sunersdg
- - 6109 o8 o J 2 = PIT 00 TeySunyg ssaidxy ofie)) nen - sweou] guneradp
- - LL91 PE16 . - B o PY] e 0dIed(Y - weo ugy pred Jselaiu]
- - 61 333 i = = 5 PYT 198D 05I8J] - DIy SI8IBy,) 1oadng ssaursng
B - 85°ET 09'vr = = = = BYT W $301A135 @lB1odier) 0iea)ly - ajqeied apely
- - 81T 1TTTh - - - N PI] 14 52014158 sre1odio)) o8]y - sy woddng SsalIsng
) ) - = L1192 L3L9T B = P¥T 1A 8318 [ELBSNPU] PUY 00850 MIiRwepeiN-sasuadyy oy
- N - - i - F6'ST¢ 80°ZT1 ‘Pr1 sous1SoT ofrea[v-pred sadeyn poddng sgauIsny
N - - - i - 99°0 R YT SORSIS0] 0F1eoy-PpoAteoay safmy)) toddng ssaursng
it - - = 9L 69% P88y = - PRI 8)255 [83)] RIPUISkEL ] -sasuadxy Juay
N - - - 1 - 13°8T : - PV S[eurwIa ], 051e0) |y - ajqeked apei]
- - - . TL9¢ P68 - - ‘P STROIULR [, 0FIed[[y-sasuadxy §40)
PZOT U B I€ STOT UMW 1€ | pZOT WIEN I STOT YMEN 1€ PTOT YWIIBIY 1€ STOT WABI 1£ PTOT WIEIN TE | S70T YOIRl 1 SABINIILE Y

dINM
SIADEI Jo quiaw / wosaad Aq pajjoszaody
a1 pue _E.:cw..“.«n_ [eLedeurgy dayy Livipsgng sojpg Apmol /pajiosyuod povonpgur Auedwo) Smproy SARMITIAEY

JUEPUTIS $ISI2IXD [FULOSIIE
[eLRseuR A3y YoIrym 13ao sagnuy

(syyey m 3)
2 :sapted paawjas RILM suonIESUET] J0 Aavmimng
suonIvsueRd) Alted pyBPY "H9T

STOT “WIIBIA IS1E PIPUS J€IK IY] 40} PUE J& SEB SHUIWIIE)S [EIDURUL} 31]) 03 5IJON]
(pontwry RyeaLg urey) £ddng eAyseAry sE umouy Apiautio )
paug Realrg uisy)) Addng oBaeayy



- 9756 - - PRI AEISH [BY BIPUISUBL] -2|qBATS0SY SHsodag] Aumosg

. 80°0F1 svol - - oIy ayeALL] Sursnoyares 1joidoy-ajqeseg sper],
- . - - - 509z = -
- . 5 = g 3E1L = =

Pl aleALl] BUISNOUDIEA, TOYV-2]qRATa0Y SYisodaT AjLmasg

PAIWIT ayeally Fuisnoyarm y 10 v-sasuadxy @iy
5 88°LS9 8FEl6 - - PRI HeAn Suisnoyares yoadoy-sosusdys esuoy
- : i = 0€'bs a3 . -

PAIWIT AL Fuisnoyaie oadoy-sasuadey Funeradp

- 6719 B = - {pue[u]) paymyT s1eAlLf [pownny 0fmeayy -spsodag funoag
- - [£'981 2 = = PN 3RAL] [PpoWn A 08rea)ly -sisodag Aitmoag
P

- - L6'0S N - IAd SYIEd [BLISDPUT PUY SoNs1S0°] IiegRUBpRA-sIIs0dac] AUnosg
P

- - - - 08Tl 000 - - Ad SYIE [RLUSTPU] PUY 50SII0 ] INEqeuRpE -d]qeieg apei],
5 S0'9T N - N
= 881 - - =
= e 9T’c S31€1 B - - -

PRI 2iBAL] BIPY] Soltsie | -siisoda Amoag

PRI S1BALL] BIPUT SOIUR[E [-SajqeAe apel],
DITIAd Utey Dy AJdang 79 S510X7 1180) -9|QEAEg Spely,

i - - GL¥l1 - - - = PITAd Uy Aiddng 7 ssardxy nen-usaig sysodaq funosg

- B 0L't1 - - - -

PY13Ad urey)y Ajddng 2p ssardxg nen-ajqeded susodag Aumaag
- 50 i = : -

PYT1Ad Uy Ajddng 59 ssaidxy B0 -D[qeAty Al

- - FLT = - = - PIT #Ad UIey) Aiddng % ssardxg neo - woysnoy WOl 2UBAPY

PITIAJ HIeqD) A[ddng 79 §52xdXT NBD) -a|qEAT@00 g JPBI].

) £9°0 N . - = P14 uteyp fddng 2p ssaadxy nen -21qearooay A

. 1
N L8'10€ 1LTY - = - - Iad meyD) Aiddng 79 ssaidxg nen -pred ssfireqn noddng ssamisng

- P08 £T61 = = - -

PITIad wiey) Ajddng 29 ssardxg nen - sesuads Suneradg 2o

dIAN

saatua Jo Jaquidwi / uosaad £q pajonyuod

119G) puk PuKosIdg |usaBeuepy Aoy Arerpisqug moag : “m“.”_h mﬂaﬁuﬁwu \a““””w.ﬂn_n_ Aurdwo) Suipjo SIemAIE]
1USIS SaSI2IAXD | N

[BLIIZEERI A3Y YINGM JIA0 SONUY

(Supyery m 2)
S B PAN L QUM SECHIVSURA] JO Arewrung
SuonaEsuRL) Alied pAeRy 4oz

STOT "UIIEN ISTE papua 83k 343 10J PUE J¥ SE SJUSWIE)S [RIOUBUL) Y} 0] $I)ON]
(papmry aeang wiey)) £1ddng viyseasy se usmouy Apaauiio)
pajuny sjealag orey)y A|ddng oBaesfy



£ s ¥

xS\J A

£ (SINVINOODDV |
o

Z\ aawanavio
@)

2,
>
Cb...m.f 3 /au

sererado Ared payeras o yaiym w1 jasuewr sy pue Kired Paejal 2 jo uonisod jerdugury
) Buiupurexa yFnoay) feak [E10uRYL Yoes Ul USYBUIPLN 51 JUALSSISSE SN T, “Satlied paje|ss AQ pasmo SJUnowe o} Sune[a1 sa1qeAasal jo Juatmiedul Awe papiesar jou sey Auedwoy) ag) ‘proz Y 1S[E PUR CZOT "UIIBEY 15T ¢ papuo
123K ay) 10, ‘sajqeded 10 s2jqeALR00: Aumd parejar Aue 10] papraoid 1o paaisoal samueeng ou U924 34D aloy |, ‘suonoesten qFu] s uure ug [reaatd jeu 0501) 0) Wa[RATbY SWLS) UO PR B sanred pajelal 1M SURTIDESHEI] AU, "] 310N
“21Ep pres ay) oidn sUGTISESUBn S pal0dal Sey AUSding A[SUIPI0ITE PUE H7(Z UOIBIA YIZ0 U0 AMBA PIe[1 5B 1SIX2 0} Pasead SI [BPOL A CaIe2]y #]
050 STO - L - - L - Yo Sur(] eiUIA -21quiRd 599, FunNg 101050
- 059 - - s - - - TUIYOJA] BUe(] BHUIA - S99, [BUOLSS3J01]
001 001 - - - - - - TuiyolA Fur(] BHUILA 598 Sunyg J010011]
EL'1S 9L'€9 - b = = g = TAEYFURS (SIIURY UBAEN - UORBIAUAWDY
- - E - 00 - - - {amupuadxg ygD) uonEpuENC BAYSEAAY
. = - : » - £TES1 85°¢S1 3oue eg BUIs0])
& - = F - = 3 - SUADO O PIJRIIAUOSG UBOT (SSa]
- - N E - = IH'SET - predai wreo ;55077
- - - . - - - - (Aangy dwrelg) uasje), weo] ppy
- - - - - - = SET UIR [ UBOT PPV
s = = - c - 0£'88¢€ ECESL aoue(Rg Funado
S[qeABd 15212)U] 29 SUBOT-PA)WNIT S308IT0T oy
= - = = : - 0T € 0T¥E PAUWI] $9051507 03RO Y-2[qeARd S90URADY|
= - - - - - LYTLE' L8TLO1 (yoeg 1) S21RY§ S0UIIA] Z898TL6 1) -SUIO
- = N = B - 110 - () PV sonstBo] 08mafTy-sepqeataoay Ainerny
. . - - - - z6'0F] 6T ‘P17 53151307 0F1R0]|y-se[quAtg SpRl],
B - . = - = 06'0 19¢ () 'PY1 sons180°] 0drea||y-oourApy /U0 uo pred 1saiau]
- | - - - ECETT 000 - - PAIELIT 21BIST [ed}y BIPUISUE ] -Sa[qeAR,{ opRlj|
JIA
S Jo Jaquan / wostad Aq pajonuod
153 pus _.E:cml_m:- [EuaSenegy £ayy Aieipisqng mofpag Apugal /pafrequos pouanyyuy Auedwo) Smppogy SIENLE]
Jeenyiudis sa81043%3 Puuostad
[BLIDBRUEN A3% YN AL J2AD G |
(Syey ur 2)

sapand pagu|as M suonsesueL Jo Arewung
SUOIIESUEL ALied Py "gor

STOT "YIEIN IS pOPUa Aeak 31) 0] PUE JB S SJUIWAI KIS [BIPUEBUL} 313 0) SION]
(payury syeanyg wiey)) Ajddng vAyseasy se usmomy Lj2uL10,)
Py gealg mey)y Ljddng oSreoyy



27

28

29

Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Fair value hierarchy (T in Lakhs)

The foilowing table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of the Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities as at 31st Mar'25

Carrying value R Fair value
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Financial Assets

Short term loans (Refer Note 8.1) 37.66 120.48 37.66 120.48

Trade receivables (Refer Note 8.2) 7,873.35 4.718.91 7,873.35 471891

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note § 3) 466,69 032 466.69 0.32

Other financial assets (Refer Note No. 4.2 & 8.4) 3,39961 4,444.31 3.399.61 4444 31
Total 11,777.31 9,284.02 11,777.31 9,284.02
Finauncial Liabilities

Borrowings (Refer Note 11.1) 10,120.59 4,030.34 10,120.59 4,030.34

Trade payables (Refer Note 11.2) 3,943.43 2,42047 3,943.43 242047

Other payables (Refer Note 11.3) 3,627.13 2,305.01 3,627.13 2,309.01

Other financial liabilities (Refer Note 11 4) 60912 66{.69 609.12 N 660.69
Total 18,300.28 9,420,533 18,300.28 9,420.53

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowings, and other current liabilities approximate their carrying

amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other

than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Fair Hierarchy :

The Company uses following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of long term financial instruments.-

Level 1: Quoted (Unadjusted) price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Techatques which uses inputs that have significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observabie market data.

Since the management has assessed that it has short term financial instruments whose Fair value largely approximates their carrying amounts, the aforesaid defined hierarchy will

not be applicable for the same.

Financial risk management ghjectives and policies

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk and risk related to its receivables. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of|
these risks.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposurz to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s eperating activities.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate nisk 1s the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to

the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates, The Company’s policy is to keep maximum
of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest,

Interest Rate Sensitivity
Interest rate sensitivity The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that porticn of loans and borrowings affected. With all

other variables held constant, the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax is affected as follows:

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars lncreas?."Dec‘rease in Effect on profit/{(foss)
basis points before tax
Term Loan from Bank (secured) +100 20.12
Loan from Financial Institutions & others (secured) +100 25.83
Term Loan from Bank (secured) (100} {20.12)
Lean from Financial Institutions & others (secured) (100} {25.83)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined for borrowings assuming the amount of borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the

whate year

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its ohligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading ta a financial loss, The Company is exposed to

credit risk from its operaling activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and foreign exchange transactions and other

financial instruments.
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

Trade Receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating te customer credit risk management. Credit

quality of a customer is assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The
Company has diversified customer base considering the nature and type of business.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous
groups and assessed for impairment cellectively. The calculation is based on historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of|
each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7.2. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to rrade
receivables as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets.

As per management policy there is no credit risk on trade receivables arising on account of transactions with related parties.

Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafis, bank term loans ete. 52.73% of the
Company’s borrowings including current maturities of non-cwrrent borrowings will mature in less than one year at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: 56.12 %) based on the
carrying value of borrowings including current maturities of nen-current borrowings reflected in the financial statements. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with
respect o refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled

over with existing lenders.

The takle below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 31 Mar,2025

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars On Demand Less than | Year More than 1 Year
Borrawings - T 459513 5,52547
Other Financial Liabilities - 1.71 60741
Lease Liability - 9,151.35 23,801.27
Trade Payable,Other Payables - - - 7.570.57 -
Grand Total - 21,318.75 29,934
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of signifieant financial liabilities as at 31 Mar,2024

(% in Lakhs)
Particalars On Demand Less than 1 Year More than 1 Year
Borrowings 459,33 500.00 307102
Other Financial Liabilities - - £60.69
Lease Liability - 7.907.37 2547520
Trade Payable Other Payables - 4,729.49 -
Grand Total 459.33 13,136.86 29,206.91
Capital Management N

The Company's objective for Capital Management is to maximise shareholder's value, support the strategic objectives of the Company. The Company determines the capital
requirements based on its financial performance, operating and long term investment plans. The funding requirements are met threugh operating cash flows generated.




Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the standalone financial statements as a¢ and for the year ended 31 March 2025

31 Leases:

Company as Lessee (% in Lakhs)

(a) The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2025:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Current lease liabilities 9,151.35 7,907.37
Non-Current lease liabilities 23,801.27 25,475.20
Closing Balances as on 31st March 32,952.62 33,382.57

{b) The following is the movement in lease liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Balances as on 1st April 33,382.57 26,204.59
Finance cost accrued during the year 2,759.44 2,953.72
Modifications in lease terms during the year 7.619.08 15,189.82
Lease payments made during the year (10,809.08) (10,965.56)
Closing Balances as on 31st March 32,952.62 __33,382.57

(¢) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease labilities as at March
31, 2025 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Within 1 year 12,042.58 10,472 .48
Between 1 to 5 years 28,217.82 28,039.95
More than 5 years 2.141.59 1.856.28
Closing Balances 42,401.99 40,368.72

The comparny does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease Habilities as and when they fall due.

(d) Total Expense on Leases

Particulars As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Lease expense on short term leases (rent) = =
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,759.44 2,953.72
Depreciation on ROU Assets 9,299.32 8,906.20
Closing Balances 12,058.77 11,859.92

Company as lessor
The Company has given certain warehouse and commercial properties on operating lease. However, the same is on cancellable leases,

as both the party has an option (o cancel by giving required notice period.




Alleargo Supply Chain Private Limited

(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)

Notes to the standalone finaucial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

32 Corporate Social Responsibility

33

34

3

w

As per section 135 of the Act, a CSR commitiee has been formed by the Company. The funds are nfilised throughout the year on
activities which are specified in Schedule VIE of the Act. The utilisation is done cither by way of direct contribution towards various

activities or by way of confribution to a trust - Avvashva Foundation.

{a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: T 43 lakhs (31 March 2024: # 28.00 lakhs)

(b) The areas of CSR activities and contributions made thereto are as follows: (X in Lakhs)
Amount speat doring the year on 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
13 To Promote rural spotts, nationally recognised sports, paralympics and Qlympics spol 25.00 -

2) Promoting education,health & safety of underpriviledged children 18.00 24.00

3} Others - 4.00

Total 43,00 28.00

() There was no unspent amount for the year ended 31 March 2025

Segment Reporting

Segmenis are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Managing Director of the Company i.c; Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) whe evaluates the Company's performance and aliocates resources based en an analysis of various
pezrformance indicators, The Company operates under a single reportable segment which is providing Contract Logistics Operations, which
involves hiring warehousing for providing 3PL service to customer. The Company dees not have any repartable geographical segment.
Accordingly, the amaunts appearing in these financial statements relate to this primary business segment. There are two customers which
contributes more than 10 % of the Company's total revenue for the period 3 1st Mar,2025.

Audit Trail

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trai? (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, audit trail feature has
not been tampered with in respect of all accounting software and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

Financtal Obligation

During the financial year the Company sold property, plant and equipments te M/s Capsave Finance Private Limited and M/s OPC Asset
Solution Private Limited (the “Buyer”) amounting to ¥ 2,373.32 Lacs (excluding GST). I connection with these transactions, the Comipany
and the Buyer entered inlo master lease agreements under which the Company agreed to lease back each of the properties for an initial term
of 3,5 & 7 years.The proceeds received from the sale-leaseback transactions amounted to  2,697.89 Lacs.

The sale-leaseback transactions were considered to have “continuing involvement™ at the inception of the lease as the Company continued
to be subject to the risks and rewards of ownership of these assets. Consequently, such a transaction cannot be accounted for as a sale and
leaseback transaction under Tnd AS 116, As a result, the assets subject to the salc-leascback remain on the balance sheet of the Company
and are being depreciated while the funds received fram the financer are accounted as regular borrowings. During the financial year, the
Company recognized Z 98.82 lacs of depreciation expense on assets sold under the financing obligation recorded on the Company's balance

sheet,

The Company has recorded a financing obligation 0f €2,582.83 Lacs in the balance sheet as at 31 st March,2025. During the Fianncial year
ihe Company recognized 2 47.16 Lacs,of interest expense related to payments made under the financing obligation.

The table below shows the minimum lease payments for the following years ended:

Years Amount
Year | 6,48,88,409
Year 2 6.48,88,409
Year3 6,48,88,409
Year 4 549,52, 583
Yoar 5 291,911,610
Year & 2,40,30,623
Year 7 2,40,30,623
Total 32,68,70,665
/('\"\/ :
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Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited
(Formerly known as Avvashya Supply Chain Private Limited)
Notes to the standatene financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2025

36 Other Statutory Information

37

38

39

For C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

i} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any Benami property.
ii} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entitities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries)

with the understanding that the Intermediary shzll:
a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or eniities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company

(Ultimate Beneficiaries} or
b) provide any guarantee, seeurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

iii) The Company has not received any fund from any persons er entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on kehalf of the Funding Party

{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

iv) The Compary has not enterted any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or

v) The Company do net have any transactions with companies struck off.

vi) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Boaed of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on December 21, 2023, approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
between Allcargo Logistics Limited (“1he Parent Company™), Allcargo Supply Chain Private Limited, (“ASCPL”), Gati Express & Supply
Chain Private Limited (“GESCPL”), Allcargo Gati Limited (“Gati”) and Allcargo ECU Limited, ("AEL") , (all subsidiaries of the Parent
Company) and their respective shareholders (“the Scheme™).

The Scheme includes:

1) Demerger of [nternational Supply Chain business of the Parznt Company in AEL effective from appointed date of October 01, 2023.
2) Merger of ASCPL, and GESCPL with GATI effective from appointed date of October G1, 2023
3) Merger of GATI with the Parent Company, post the merger of ASCPL and GESCPL into GATI on the date, the scheme becomes

effective.
The Scheme of Arrangement and other details are availabie on the Parent Compary’s website.

Events afier reporting date

The Compasite Scheme of Arrangement between Allcarge Logistics Limited (“the Parent Company™), Allcargo Supply Chain Private
Limited, (“ASCPL"), Gati Express & Supply Chain Private Limited (“GESCPL"), Allcargo Gati Limited {“Gati") and Allcargo ECU
Limited, {“AEL"}, {all subsidiaries of the Company) and their respective shareholders (“the Scheme”) has been approved by BSE October
09, 2024 and by NSE on October 10, 2024. 'The Scheme along with a petition to approve the same has been filed with the National
Company Law Tribunal whose Ist motion NCLT order to conduct EGM was received on December 11, 2024, The Scheme was approved
by shareholders of the Parent Company and Gati on February 18, 2025. The requirement to hotd a sharchelders meeting for the other three
companies which are part of the Scheme was waived by the NCLT. Subsequent to sharehclder approval, the 2nd metior alongwith a
petition for approval of the Scheme was filed with the NCLT which has set a date of July 02, 2025 for the hearing,

Previous Year Figures
Previous Year Figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, fo cpnfinm to this year's classification.

For and jon behalf of Board of Directors of
Allgargo| Supply Chain Private Limited

ICAI firm registration No.]02105W _— CIN{U45200MH2008PTC179557
- £
PSEIDN Ko
A \ /

Ashish C. Dangi
Partner
Membership No.122926

Place: Mumbai
Date : 16th May,2025
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